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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighteenth (19™) Annual General Meeting of the Members
of PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED will be held at Mafatlal House, Backbay Reclamation,

Mumbai, 400 020 on Tuesday, 20" July, 2021 at 02.30 p.m. (IST) to t-ansact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Statement of Profit & Loss, Cash Flow
Statement of the Company for the year ended 315t March, 2021 and the Balance Sheet as
at 315 March, 2021 and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. R. M Desai (holding DIN: 07315943), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 14Z and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s), amendment(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the consent of merr bers of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to appoint M/s. N. A. Shah Associites LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No.: 116560W / W100149) as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company and to hold the office from the conclusion of ensting Annual General
Meeting to conduct audit of the financial statements for FY 2021-22 till the conclusion of
AGM to be held during the year 2022, at a remuneration to be dec ded by the Board of
Directors in consultation with the Auditors plus applicable taxes a1d reimbursement of
travelling and out of pocket expenses incurred by them for the purpose of audit.”

By Order of the Board
For PIL CHEMIC ALS LIMITED

Friyanka bang
Company Secretary

fumbai, 14" May, 2021






Dividend

The Directors are please to recommend payment of )Jividend of Re. .2 per share of ¥10/-
each( 12% ) , on the equity share capital of the Cc pany (previous year 6% Re. 0.60 per
share of T10/- each).The Dividend together with the 1x on Dividend if any , will absorb a
sum of Rs. 100 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 60.43 Lakhs

Deposits

The Company has not accepted deposits falling with  the purview of provisions of Section
73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“t  Act”) read with ~2 Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)

Rules, 2014 during the year under review and there ¢ no outstanding/ inclaimed deposits as
at 31% March 2021.

Report on performance of subsidiaries, associates  d joint venture companies

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate - joint venture Companies.

Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Anmt  Return in Form MGT 9 is annexed
herewith and forms a part of this report. The Compar loes not have ary website and hence,
the Annual Return referred to in Section 92(3) has not  :en placed on the website.

Loans, Guarantees or Inve ments

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments und  Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013, are given in the Notes forming part of Financ = Statements for the year ended 31st
March 2021.

Disclosure of Internal Financial Controls

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to 1ancial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. During e year under review, no material or
serious observation has been received from the Streitory Auditors of the Company for
inefficiency or inadequ _ of such controls.

Number of Board Meetings

During the year under review, the Board of Directors et four times on 26™ June 2020, 18"
August 2020 ,2" November 2020 and 28" January 20

Particulars of Employees

None of tt employees are drawing salary in excec. of the limits p-escribed as per the
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 201 read with Rule 5 of the Compa
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Persor 1) Rules, 2014.
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safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
irregularities;
(d) That the annual financial statements have been
(e) That proper internal financial controls were in
adequate and were operating effectively;

(f) That systems to ensure compliance with the
place and were adequate and operating effective

(g) That all the applicable Secretarial Standards he
during the year under review.

Risk Management Policy

The Board of Directors of the Company has ¢
Guidelines to avoid events, situations or circu
consequences on the Company's businesses, and
uncertainty and to make use of these in their des
divisions and corporate functions. Key business ris
the annual/strategic business plans and in periodic r

Auditors

The term of M/s. N. A. Shah Associates LLP, Ch
No.: 116560W / W100149, Mumbai as Statutory A
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, the
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 139(1) of
Directors have  :ommended the appointment ¢
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of th
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting
be held during the year 2022 to examine and aud
Financial Year 2021-22 under Section 139 of th
approval of 1 mbers. The Auditors have giver
appointment, if made, will be within the prescribed
Companies Act, 2013.

Observations of statutory auditors on accounts fc

The observations / qualifications / disclaimers made

for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 read ...
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Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2
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... the explanatory notes tI-
do not call for any fur* 2r explanation o* comment:



Reporting of frauds by statutory auditors under

There were no incidences of reporting of frauds
under Section 143(12) of the Act read with Compar.

Maintenance of Cost Records

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of thi
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 201
Company is not required to maintain Cost Records 1

Disclosure Regarding Internal Complaints Comr

The Company has complied with the provisions
Complaints Com ttee under the Sexual Harassmei
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

General

Your Directors state that no disclosures or reporting
items as there w¢  no transactions on these items du

a. No significant or material orders were passed b
which impact the going concern status and Com

b. Issue of Equity Shares with differential votin,
Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013;

c. Issue of Shares including Sweat Equity Shares t
any scheme as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d

d. No instances of non-exercising of voting rights
by employees under a scheme pursuant to Sectio

e. There v no revision to the financial sta
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N. A. SHAH ASSCCIATES LLP i

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
PIL Chemicals Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statemente of PIL Chemicals Limited ("thc Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of
Changes its Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
requirecd and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
a: 2t 3% March 2021. the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Rasis for Qpinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiiities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial stalements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence vie have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 3

N. A. Shah Associates LLP is registered with limited liability having LLP identification No. AAG-7909
Regd. Off.: B 4145, Paragon Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai 400 013.
Tel.: 81-22-40733000 @ Fax: 91-22-40733090 ® E-mail : info@nashah.com
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N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

FIL Chemicals Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the staie of affairs,
profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash fliows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
ceess opere’ions, or has.no reelistic aiternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

T
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N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

FIL Chemicals Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
refated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

e communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1) The financial statements of the Company as on 31% March, 2020 were audited by another auditor;
whose report dated 26™ June, 2020 expressed an unmodified opinion. We have relied on the said
financial statement for the purpose of confirming the opening balances of assets, equity and liabilities
as on 1* April, 2020 in respect of the year under audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this




N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

FIL Chemicals Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

Repart are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act; read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report given in “Annexure B”.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year, accordingly provisions
of section 197 of the Act read with schedule V to the Act in respect of managerial remuneration
are not applicable. Therefore, reporting as required by Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable
to the Company.

With respect tc the Other Matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Audilors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W/W 100149

(o oty

Milan Mody

Partner

Membership No.: 103286
UDIN: 21103286AAAACES060

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14™ May 2021



N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

PIL Chemicals Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31%" March 2021

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date)

0 In respect of fixed assets (property, plant and equipment):

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
fixed assets are verified by the management annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. According to the explanations given to us, there was no material
discrepancies noticed on the physical verification of fixed assets.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, all the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the company. In respect to the immovable property — leasehold
land, the lease agreement is in the name of the Company.

(iiy The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. There were no
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records.,

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the requirement of clause (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security to the parties covered under
Section 185 of the Act during the year. The Company has complied with the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or guarantee or security
provided to the parties covered under Section 186.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits covered under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
under the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. We are informed that no order relating to the Company has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court
or any other Tribunal. Accordingly, clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the
company

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of operations carried out by the Company. Therefore, the requirement of clause (vi) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) In respect of Statutory Dues:

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax,

——




N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

PIL Chemicais Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31" March 2021

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date]

duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable to the Company, during the year with the appropriate authorities. There are no
undisputed statutory dues payable in respect to above statutes, outstanding as at 31°
March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Profession tax, Income
tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any other statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31™ March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable to the appropriate authorities.

b. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no disputed income tax, goods and service tax,
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax as on 31%
March, 2021 which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viy  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not have any
outstanding dues to any financial institution, bank, and government or debenture holders during
the year. Accordingly, clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) According lo the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term
loans during the year. Accordingly, clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to
information and explanation given to us, we have neither noticed nor have been informed by the
management, any incidence of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees.

(xi) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examinations of
records of the Company, under clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Order the Company has not
paid / provided for any managerial remuneration during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with related parties and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statement as required by the applicable
accounting standards (Refer note 35).

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

{xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with the directors. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the



N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

PIL Chemicals Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31% March 2021

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date]

Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi} ~ The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of the clause (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 116560W/MW 100149

U.Moc/@?

Milan Mody
Partner
Membership No.: 103286
UDIN: 21103286AAAACEQ060

IATS
£

Place: Mumbai
Daie: 14" May 2021



N. A. SHAH ASSQOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

PIL Chemicals Limited

Annexure B to Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31% March 2021

[Referred to point 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regutatory requirements” of our report of
even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PIL Chemicals Limited (‘the
Company”) as of 31° March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31> March, 2021, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for estabiishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by ICAl and the and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend




N. A. SHAH ASSQOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

PIL Chemicals Limited

Annexure B to Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31° March 2021

[Referred to point 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
even date]

on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning ot Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely defeciion of unauthorized acouisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
materiai effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financiai Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of interna! financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firp-Registration No. 116560W/MW 100149

o

Milan Mody

Partner

Membership No.: 103286
UDIN: 2110328GAAAACEQ060

Place: Mumbai
Date: 14" May 2021



PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

{Amount: INR in Lakhs)

. As at March As at March
Particulars Note | 31, 2021 31,2020
A ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,585 2,788
(b) Capital Work in Progress (Tangible) 13 4
(c) Intangible Assets 4 3 3
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 27 16
(ii) Other Financial Assets 6 49 51
(e) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 131 194
(f) Other Non Current Assets 0/ 15 12
Total Non - Current Assets 2,823 3,068
2 Current asseis
(a) Inventories 8 41 31
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 9 1,106 716
(ii) Trade Receivable 10 172 4]
(iif) Cash and cash equivalents 11 76 103
(iv) Other financial assets 12 6 12
(c) Other current asszts 13 21 11
Totai Current Assets 1,422 914
Total Assets (1+2) 4,245 3,982
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity
(2) Equity Share capital 14 835 835
(b) Other Equity 15 2,792 2,592
Total Equity 3,627 3,427
LIABILITIES
2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 16 47 43
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 26 391 402
Total Non - Current Liabilitics 438 445
3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(@) Total outstanding dues of micro and small 17 I 9
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues to creditors other 17 91 57
than micro and small enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities 18 4 7
(b) Other current liabilities 19 24 15
(¢) Provisions 20 24 22
(d) Current tax liabilities 26 -
Total Current Liabilities 180
Total Equity and Liabilitics (1+2+3) 4,245
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount: INR in Lakls)

VII Profit After Tax (V-VI)

Particulars Note | For the Year ended on | For the Year ended on
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
I Revenue from operations 21 1,518 1,343
Il Other income 22 47
IH Total Revenue (I + IT) 1,562 1,390
IV Expenses
(2) Changcs in Inventory 23 -
(b) Employee Benefit Expense 24 260
(c) Finance Cost 25 »
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 132
(e) Other expenses 27 205
Total Expense (IV) 1,267 1,297
V Profit before tax (III - IV) 93
VI Tax expense:
Current Tax 28 21
Deferred Tax expense / (credit) 28 3
Short/(Excess) provision for tax relating to prior year 28 0
Total Tax Expense (VI) 24
69
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2021

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended on

For the Year ended on

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

(A) (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
(B) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

(Charge)/Credit
(b) Net fair value (loss)/gain on investments in equity shares
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassitied to profit

or loss
L(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

(b) Net fair value gain on investments in €quity shares at FVTOCI

Uther comprehensive Income tor the Year

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII)

©

Q)

(17N

)

(21)

200

48

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021
{Amount: INR in Lakhs)

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
(Audited) (Audited)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
(I)Profit before Tax 295 93
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 136 132
Interest Income (26) (29)
Dividend Income (2) (18)
Sundry credit balances written back (n (0)
Loss/ (Gain) on fair valuation of investment in mutual fund (15) 8
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipent 58 =
(IT) Total 150 93
(ITT) Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (I+1IT) 445 186
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (131) 61
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (10) (2)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other financial assets - Non Current 2 0
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets - Non Current (4) 4
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets - Current (1o 18
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Financial Assets - Current - 9
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables 36 20
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Financial Liabilities ~Current - (25)
(Decrease)/Increase in other liabilities - current 8 (3)
Increase in provision - non current - 5
Increase in provision - current 2 2
(TV) Total (103) 71
(V) Cash generated from operations (II[+Iv) 342 257
Income tax paid (25) (33)
(VI) Net Cash used in Operating Activities 317 224
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment to acquire financial assets (750) (300)
Proceeds on redemption of financial assets 375 216
Capital expenditure on fixed assets (22) (57)
Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment 20 -
Dividend received 2 18
Interest received 31 19
(VII) Net Cash used in Investing Activities (344) (104)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Paid (including DDT paid thereon) - (120}
(VL) Net Cash from Financing Activities - (120)
(IX) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (VI+VII+VIID) 27) (0)
(X) Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 103 103
(IX+X) Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 76 103

Notes:
(a) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Mcthod" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS -
"Statement of Cash Flow"

(b) 0 indicates amount Less than Z. 0,50 Lakhs
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Amauni: INR in L akhs)

a. Equity Share Capital As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 835 835
Issued during the year - -
Closing Balance 835 835
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Other Equity Other Comprehensive Income
b. Other Equity . - . Equity Total
Capnal* Secur‘mes Rela.lned Instrument Other Items of OCI
Reserves Premium earnings x
through OCI

Balance as at April 01, 2019 0 1,669 986 14 (5) 2,664
Add: Profit for the year - - 69 - - 69
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - (16) (&) @n
Less: Dividend related to 18-19 paid in 19-20 - - (60) = = (60)
Less: Interim Dividend paid in 19-20 - - {60) - - (60)

Total - - {51) {16) (5) (72)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 0 1,669 935 (2) (10} 2,592
Add: Profit for the year - - 192 - - 192
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - 7 1 8

Total 0 - 192 7 1 200
Balance as at March 31, 2021 0 1,669 1,127 5 (9) 1,792

Refer Note 15 for nature and purpose of Reserve,
* Amount Less than Z. 0.50 Lakhs
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

NOTE 1: GENERAL INFORMATION

a)

b)

Corporate information

PIL Chemicals Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Rubber
Chemicals on Job Work basis for its 100% holding Company NOCIL Limited. The
Company has manufacturing plant at Vapi Gujarat, and carries out the
manufacturing activities on job work basis solely for NOCIL Limited.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS).Ind
AS implies the Indian Accounting Standards as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 (the Act)
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. These
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
on accrual basis at the end of each reporting period except for:

- Certain financial Assets and Liabilities that are measured at fair value
- Defined Benefit Plans that are measured at fair value

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per
the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the
Division Il of Schedule IIl of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and the time between acquisition of assets for proceeding and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle not more than 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021
have been approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board
of Directors on May 14, 2021.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

d)

Functional and presentational currency

The financial -statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Key estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting
policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates made in the preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as
estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

- Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the
assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitalized [Refer
note 2(a)]

- Determination of the estimated useful lives of intangible assets; [Refer
note 2(b)]

- Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations [Refer note
29 of the financial statements]

- Fair value of financial instruments [Refer note 1(e)]

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of

resources; [Refer note 2(h)]

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the
management becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

e)

f)

Measurement of Fair value

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement
of fair values for financial instruments.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews significant
inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as
Government approved valuer, broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which
such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3:.inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company
recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Refer Note 34 of the financial statements.

Application of new and revised Ind AS’s

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments
to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2021.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

Property, Plant and Equipment:-

The Company had elected to fair value its leasehold land as at the transition
date and cost in accordance with Ind AS for all other assets including
intangibles.

Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition or construction,
including any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management less accumulated depreciation and less accumulated
impairment, if any. Cost includes expenses related to acquisition and
installation of the concerned assets, borrowing cost during the construction
period, estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located and excludes any duties / taxes recoverable.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting
date is classified as Capital Advances under Other Non-Current Assets and
assets which are not ready for intended use as on the date of balance Sheet
are disclosed as "Capital Work in Progress".

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes all costs incurred to bring the assets to their present location
and condition. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

The estimated residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment. :




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

b)

When significant identifiable parts of PPE are required to be replaced, the
Company de-recognises the replaced parts and recognises the new part with
its own associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. In other cases,
expenses are charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is provided, under the Straight Line Method basis so as to write
off the original cost of the asset less its estimated residual value over the
estimated useful life. The Management’s estimate of useful lives is in
accordance with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Assets costing Rs.
50,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. The threshold limit
of Rs. 50,000/- has been identified based on the ability of the asset to be ‘put
to use’ either singly or as a block as the case may be. Leasehold land is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.

Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale) in accordance with Ind AS 105 and the date that the asset is
derecognised. Therefore, depreciation does not cease when the asset
becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

The management believes that useful lives currently used is as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, fairly reflect its
estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful life. The useful life of
intangible assets is assessed as either finite or infinite. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with finite useful life are
reviewed at each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriéte, and




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

c)

are treated as changes in accounting estimates. Amortisation is recognised on
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted on a prospective
basis.

Estimated useful lives of finite intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Useful life

Software 10 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested
for impairment annually. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
3annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made
on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Impairment

i) Financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets
carried at amortized cost and investment in equity securities at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) are credit impaired. A financial asset is credit
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The Company has followed general model for measuring loss allowances to
measure its financial assets. The detailed assessment of credit risk for each
class of financial asset is explained in note 31(iii)(b) of Ind AS financial
statement.

Presentation of allowance for credit losses in the balance sheet: Loss
allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from
the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off: The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtar does

. - /
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cagh flows
— /




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

d)

to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii) Non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any
indication of an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The
impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which impairment takes place. Recoverable amount is higher of an
assets net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of
estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an
assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, however subject to the
increased carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior accounting periods.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of stores, spares, consumables and work-in-progress
which are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, after providing
for obsolete/slow-moving items. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of
purchase (net of input credits), costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of stores
and spares is determined on weighted average basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises cash on hand, bank
balances and short term deposits with banks with an original maturity of three
months or less which are readily convertible into cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management. -




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

f)

g)

Cash flow statement

Cash Flows are reported using Indirect Method, whereby profit for the year is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial assets of one
entity and financial liability or equity of another entity. Financial instruments
also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange
forward contracts.

i) Financial Asset

Initial recognition:

Financial assets are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at:
e amortised cost

e fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

« fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except
if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

Trade Receivables and Loans:

Trade Receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these
assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts
estimated future cash income through the expected life of financial
instruments.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

Debt Instruments:

Debt instruments are initially measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss
(‘FVTPL’) till de-recognition on the basis of (i) the Company’s business
model for managing the financial assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

a) Measured at amortised cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured ‘at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’)
method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising
from impairment, if any is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

b) Measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Fair value movements are recoghized in the other
comprehensive income (OCl). Interest income measured using the EIR
method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to ‘Other Income’ in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVTOCI, is
classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with
all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income
if any, recognised as ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instruments/ Mutual Funds:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the
Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income jor equity
instruments which are not held for trading. 4




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on
an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if
the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
reserve for 'equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
on disposal of the investments.

For investments in mutual fund, the Company has opted to account for the
fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing
impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease
receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or
other financial asset.

For trade receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

De-recognition of financial assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether
it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognised. Where
the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has not retained control of
the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of gontinuing
involvement in the financial asset.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

h)

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at initial recognition; they are classified as fair value
through profit and loss. In case of trade payables, they are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss
is measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The interest expenses using the effective
interest method is recognised over the relevant period of the financial
asset. The same is included under Finance cost in the Statement of Profit
and Loss unless it is capitalized as part of cost of an item of Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of the new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in
currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the rates prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translat¢d. Exchange




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

i)

differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they arise.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of products and services is recognised when the products
are dispatched to customers, all significant contractual obligations have been
satisfied and the collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably expected.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of customer returns, trade
allowance, rebates, goods and services tax and amount collected on behalf of
third parties.

Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts and
returns. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with
normal credit days consistent with market practice.

Dividend income from investments is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment
is eslablished.

lor all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instruments or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets. Interest income is included in other
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee benefits

Short-term Employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as
salaries, performance incentives, etc., are recognized as an expense at the
undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which
the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

Post-Employment Benefits:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Defined Contribution Plans

Payments made to a defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund and
Employee State Insurance Scheme are charged as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as they fall due.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, after
discounting the same. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCl). Net interest expense (income) on the net
defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to
measure the net defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the
resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other Long-Term Employee Benefits (Compensated absences)

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Re-measurement is recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2021.

k)

Leases
As a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) The Contract involves the use of an identified asset

(i) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset through the period of the lease and

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-
of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less
any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are
determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value
of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance,
Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

As a Lessor

Lease payments under operating leases are generally recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense, deferred tax charge or
credit, minimum alternate tax credit and adjustments of taxes for earlier year
that may become necessary due to certain development or reviews during the
relevant period. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the
taxable income for the year and any adjustments to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years as determined in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 that have been enacted or
subsequently enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the reporting date,

to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternate Tax Credit

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in
the nature of unused tax credit which can be carried forward and utilized when
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when areliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. The expenses relating to a
provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any
reimbursement.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
CIN No: U25209MH2002PLC135201

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021.

p)

a)

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements
where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results are
anti-dilutive.

Dividend
The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval
by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the

date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Segment Reporting

The Company is considered to be a single segment company — engaged in the
manufacture of rubber chemicals. Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). Operating Segments are defined as components of an
enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the CODM, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing
performance. "
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 4 : Intangible Assets

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Description of Assets Computer Total
Software
I. Gross Block
Balance as at 1 April, 2020 5 5
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 5 5
I. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April, 2020 2
Amortisation expense for the year* 0
Eliminated on disposal of assets - &
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 2 2
III. Net block as on 31 March 2021 (I-1I) 3 3
* Amount Less than ¥. 0.50 Lakhs
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Description of Assets Computer Total
Software
I. Gross Block
Balance as at 1 April, 2019 5 5
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 5 5
IL. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April, 2019
Amortisation expense for the year* 0 0
Eliminated on disposal of assets - S
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 2 2
III. Net block as on 31 March 2020 (I-11) 3 &)

* Amount Less than € 0.50 Lakhs




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 5 : Non Current Investments

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31,2020
Particul
articutars No of Shares Amount | No of Shares| Amount
A. Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
( at Fair Value through OCI)
a. Quoted Equity Shares
Bank of India of Rs 10/- each fully paid up 19,900 14 19,900 )
Corporation Bank of Rs 2/- each fully paid up - - 12,000 1
Union Bank of India Rs 10/- each fully paid up 3,960 1 - -
b. Unquoted Equity Shares
Mafatlal UK * - - 32,000 0
Mafatlal Services Limited * 22,320 0 22,320 0
B. Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
(at fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL))

- JM Mutual Fund (of Rs. 10/- each) 50,000 8 50,000 6
- UTI Masters Share (of Rs. 10/- each) 10,560 4 10,560 2
Total Investments [A+B] 27 16
INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT FVTPL 12 8
INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT FVTOCI 15 8
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 15 8
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - at market value 15 8
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 12 8

* Amount Less than ¥ 0.50 Lakhs

Note : Corporation Bank merged with Union Bank as on
been issued.

Note 6 : Other Financial assets - Non Current

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March | As at March
Particulars 31,2021 31,2020
a) Security Deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 44 44
b) Loans and advances to employees 4 5
¢) Fixed Deposit with bank (under lein) 1 2
Total 49 S1

Note 7 : Other Non Current Assets

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March | As at March

Particulars 31,2021 31,2020
Prepaid Expenses _— 15 12
¥ Total 15 12

01.04.2020 and equivalent shares of Union Bank has




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 8: Inventories (at lower of cost and nct realisable value )

Particul As at March| As at March

culars 31,2021 31,2020

(a) Work in Progress 15 -
(b) Stores, Spares and Consumables 26 31
Total 41 31

Refer note 2(e) for accounting policy for inventory valuation.

Note 9 : Current Investments

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,2021

As at March 31,2020

QTY Current QTY Current
a. Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)
(at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL))
HDFC Arbiltr‘age Fund - Wholesale Plan- Regular Plan - A _ 15.31,373 166
Monthly Dividend
H]?FC Liquid Fund -Regular Plan-Dividend-Daily N A 3,874 150
Reinvest
Axis Treasury Advantage Fund-Growth 10,171 252 - -
IDFC Low Duration Fund-Growth 8,22,926 252 - -
Axis Overnight Fund-Growth 23,157 252 - -
Total (a) - 756 316
b. Other Investments
(at amortised cost)
Intercorporate deposits with HDFC Limited - 150 - 400
Intercorporate deposits with Bajaj Finance Limited - 200 - -
Total (b) 350 400
INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT FVTPL (a+b) 1,106 716
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,106 716




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 10 : Trade receivables

(Amount: INR in Lakls)

Particulars As at March As at March
31,2021 31,2020
Trade Receivable
(a) Considered Good -Secured =
(b) Considered Good-Unsecured # 172 41
(©) Which have significant increase in credit Risk -
(d) Credit Impaired = -
172 41
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful debts - .
Total 172 41

# All the receivables are from holding company NOCIL Limited

Note 11: Cash and cash equivalents

(Amount: INR in Lakis)

Particulars As at March As at March
31,2021 31,2020
(a) Bank balances
- In Current account 76 103
(b) Cash in hand* 0 0
Total 76 103
Cash and cash equivalent as per statement of cash flow. 76 103

* Amount Less than T. 0.50 Lakhs




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 12: Other Financial assets - Current

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March | As at March
Particulars 31,2021 31,2020
a) Loans and advances to employees * - 0
b) Interest Accrued on other deposits 6 12
Total 6 12
* Amount Less than ¥. 0.50 Lakhs
Note 13: Other Current Assets
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
As at March | As at March
Particulars 31,2021 31,2020
a) Balances with government authorities
- Goods and Service Tax 14 7
b) Advance to vendors * 3 0
c) Prepaid Expenses 4 4
Total 21 11

* Amount Less than 3. 0.50 Lakhs




PIL. CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 14: Equity Share Capital

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Units Amount Units Amount
Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 1,00,00,000 1,000 1,00,00,000 1,000
1,00,00,000 1,000 1,00,00,000 1,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 83,54,833 835 83,54,833 835
Total 83,54,833 835 83,54,833 835

Refer Notes (i) to (iv) below

Notes

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March 31,2021

As at March 31,2020

‘ticulars

vt No.of Shares Amount No.of Shares Amount
Equity shares

At the beginning of the year 83,54,833 835 83,54,833 835
Add: Issued during the year = - 5 =
At the end of the year 83,54,833 835 83,54,833 835

(i) Rights, Preference and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in

the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining asset of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March 31,2021

As at March 31,2020

Number of shares| % holdingin | Number of shares | % holding in

Class of shares / Name of shareholder held that class of held that class of
shares shares

NOCIL Limited 83,54,833 100% 83,54,833 100%

(iv) As per the records of the Company , including its register of shareholders / members & other declarations received
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest , the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership

of shares.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 15: Other equity
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March As at March
31,2021 31,2020

(a) Capital Reserve * 0 0
(b) Securities Premium 1,669 1,669
(c) Retained earnings 1,127 935
(d )Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income 5 (2)
(e) Other Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation 9) (10)
Total 2,792 2,592

* Amount Less than . 0.1 Lakhs
Nature and purpose of each reserve within Other equity

Securities premium account

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares issued is recognised in securities
premium account. It can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to
provide for premium on redemption of shares ,write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs,
etc.

Retained earnings:
Retained earnings represents the surplus / (deficit) of the statement of profit and loss after tax less transfers

to general reserves and dividend distributed to shareholders including DDT.

Equity instrument through other comprehensive income:

This reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the fair valuation of equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to retained
earnings when those assets have been disposed of.

Other Items of other comprehensive income-Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation:
Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes
in the liabilities over the year due to changes in acturial assumptions or experience adjustments within the
plans, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are adjsuted to retained earnings

Details of dividends paid / proposed:

For the current year ended March 31, 2021 the Company has proposed dividend of ¥ 1.20 per share
During the previous year, the Company had paid dividend of ¥ 0.60 per share for the year ended March
31, 2019. Further, during the previous year the Company had also declared and paid interim dividend of ¥
0.60 per share for the year ended March 31, 2020.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 16: Provisions - Non Current

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2021 31,2020
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 29) 47 43
Total 47 43
Note 17: Trade Payables
(Amount: INR in Lakls)
Particulars
As at March As at March
31,2021 31,2020
Trade payables
Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 11 9
Dues to Others 91 57
Total 102 66

Note: Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the ‘The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ has heen determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the

auditors.

Particulars

As at March
31,2021

As at March
31,2020

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the
end of the year

11

b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the
year

¢) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
of the MSMED Act,2006, along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act.2006

¢) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year

f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the MSMED Act ,2006




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 18: Other Financial Liabilities - Current

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March As at March
31,2021 31,2020
Sundry Creditors
i) For Capital goods
- Payable to Micro and Small Enterprises* 0 1
- Payable to Others 4 6
if) Others - -
Total 4 7

Note: Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the

auditors.

“The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006’ has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the

Particulars

As at March 31,

2021

As at March
31, 2020

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the
end of the year*

b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the
year

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act.2006

e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year

f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the MSMED Act ,2006

* Amount Less than ¥ 0.50 Lakhs

Note 19: Other Current Liabilities

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at March As at March
31,2021 31,2020
Statutory Dues 24 15
Total 24 15

Note 20: Provisions - Current

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

As at March As at March
Particulars 31,2021 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 29) 24 22
Total 24 22




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ecnded March 31,2021

Note 21: Revenue from Operations

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from Operations 1,518 1,343
Total 1,518 1,343

Note 22: Other Income
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) Interest Income-financial assets
measured at amortised cost
On Bank deposits 23 25
On Staff Loan* 0
On Other Deposits 3 3
26 28
(b) Other gains and losses- financial
assets measured at Fair Value
through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Gain on fair valuation of investment in
mutual funds 15 =
15 -
(¢) Other Non-Operating Income
Dividend Income on Mutual Funds
measured at Fair value through Profit
and loss (FVTPL) 2 18
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 1
Sundry Balances written Back* 1 0
3 19
Total 44 47

* Amount Less than . 0.50 Lakhs

Note 23 : Changes in stock of work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Closing stock
- Work in progress 15 -
15 -
Opening stock
- Work in progress -
Net Decrease /(Increase) in
Inventories 5)




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 24: Employee benefits expense

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus 247 229
Contributions to provident and other funds 14 13
Gratuity 6 5
Leave Encashment 12 7
Staff welfare expenses 4 6
Total 283 260
Note 25: Finance Cost

Particulars For the year ended

March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020

Interest Expense

1 -

Total

1 -




Note 26: Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note
3) 136 132
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4)* 0 0
Total 136 132

* Amount Less than Z. 0.50 Lakhs

Note 27: Other expenses

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

For the vear ended
Particulars
March 31, | March 31,

2021 2020
Consumption of stores and spare parts 92 69
Power, fuel and Other Utilities 489 582
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 2 8
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 83 83
Repairs and maintenance - Others 37 41
Insurance 14 15
Rates and taxes 6 6
Donations and contributions - 6
Payments to auditors (Refer Note 32) 4 4
Professional,Consultancy & Legal expenses 38 30
Effluent treatment expenses 21 28
Loss on fair valuation of investment in mutual funds - 8
Loss on discard/sale of property, plant and equipment 58 -
Miscellaneous expenses 18
Total 862




PIL Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 28 : Current Tax and Deferred Tax

(a) Income Tax Expense recognised in statement of profit and Joss

{Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March, 2021

For the year
ended
31 March, 2020

A. Current Tax:

(a) Current Income Tax Charge 103 21
(b) Short provision for tax relating to prior years* 11 0
Total 114 21
B. Deferred Tax
(a) In respect of current year (1N 3
Total (11) 3
* Amount Less than T 50 Lakhs
Note :Tax expense (including deferred tax) for the year as on 31st March 2021 includes INR | 1. 57 lakhs on
account of change in tax rate on account of change in applicable surcharge,
(b) Income Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year
ended

31 March, 2021

For the year
ended
31 March, 2020

A, Deferred Tax

(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligations* (0) N
(b) Net fair value loss/gain on investments in equity shares at FVTOCT* 0 1
Total* 0 (0)

¥ Amount Less than . 0.50 Lakhs

(¢ ) Reconciliation of income tax expenses with accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic rate
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year
ended

31 March, 2021

For the year
ended
31 March, 2020

Profit before tax 295 93
Less: Income taxed at different tax rate 5 -
Profit Before tax 290 93
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate * 81 24
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 4 6
Effect of income that is not taxable/ unabsorbed losses in determining (3) (2)
taxable profit

Effect of reversal of deferred tax liability (Net) 4) “4)
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in income tax rate 12 -
(effective 01 -04.2020)

Effect of income taxed at different tax rate 1 -
Interest on Income Tax 1 -
Adjustments in respect of prior years* 11 0
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss 103 24

corporate tax, education cess and secondary and higher education cess on ¢
entities in India on taxable profits under Income Tax Act, 1961.
* 0 indicates amount Less than ¥ 0.50 Lakhs
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 29: Employee Benefits
1) Defined contribution plans :

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in relation
to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates specified by the rules of those
plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid
until after the end of the reporting period. ‘

The major defined contribution plans operated by the Company are as below:
a) Provident fund, pension and Employee State Insurance Scheme

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees State Insurance Act,1948,
eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of above fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both
employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees salary. The contributions,
as specified under the law, are made to the respective funds administered and managed by Government of India. The Company has no
further obligations under the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company.

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year under employee benefits
expense, are as under :
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March | ended 31 March
2021 2020
i) Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund and pension 12 12
ii) Employer's Contribution to ESIC 1 1
Total 13 13

2) Defined Benefit Plans
(a) Gratuity (Tinfunded)

The Compuny hug an obligation towards gratimty, an unlunded detined benefit retirement plan covering cligible employcees. 'I'he plan
provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of the employment of an
amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service, without any payment ceiling. Vesting
occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based
on an actuarial valuation.

The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:
Gratuity (included as part of gratuity in Note 24 Employee benefits expense)

A. Principal actuarial assumptions used:

Gratuity
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020
Discount rate 6.44% 6.82%
Expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
[ALM (2006-08) | IALM (2006-08)
Mortality tables Ult. Ult.
Expected rate of Return NA. N.A.
Withdrawal Rates 6.00% 6.00%
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Gratuity
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020
A. Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit
plans are as follows
Service cost:
Current service cost 3 3
Past service cost and (gain) / loss from settlements - -
Net interest expense 3 2
Remeasurements = >
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or Joss




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 29: Employee Benefits (contd.)

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

B. Amounts recognised in statement of OCI in respect of these defined benefit plans are as | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
follows 2021 2020
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in net interest cost) - =
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - =
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions | 2
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in experience adjustments 2) 2
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (1) 4
Total (A+B) 5 9

C. Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows
(Amount: INR in Lakls)

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2021 2020
Opening net defined benefit liability/(assets) 42 33
Expenses charged to statement of profit and loss 6 5
Amount recognised outside statement of profit and loss (1) 4
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out = -
Employer contributions paid directly* (0) -
Impact of liability assumed or (settled) 47 42
* Amount Less than 3 0.50 Lakhs
D. Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
(Ameount: INR in Lakhs)
Gratuity
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020
Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation 42 33
Current service cost 3 3
Interest vost 3 2
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out -
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 1 2
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in experience adjustments (2) 2
Past service cost, including losses/(gains) on curtailments -
Benefits paid* (0) -
Closing defined benefit abligation 47 42

* Amount Less than ¥ 0.50 Lakhs

E. Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

Estimated for

Estimated for

the year ended | the year ended

March 31. 2021 | March 31, 2020
1st Following Year 6 5
2nd Following Year 3 3
3rd Following Year 3 3
4th Following Year 6 3
5th Following Year 3 S
Sum of Years 6 to 10 18 17

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality.
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the

end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant,

Sensitivity Analysis

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Gratuity
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2021 2020
Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate + 50 basis points 2) (2)
Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate - 50 basis points 2 2
Defined Benefit Obligation - Salary Escalation Rate + 50 basis points 2 2
Defined Benefit Obligation - Salary Escalation Rate - 50 basis points (2) (2)
Defined Benefit Obligation - Employee Turnover + 50 basis points 0 0
Defined Benefit Obligation - Employee Turnover - 50 basis points (0) (0)

* Amount Less than 7. 0.50 Lakhs

These sensitivities have been calculated above to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no ,/

other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and

assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 30: Earnings per share (EPS)

: For the Year Ended on
Particulars

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
company (4mount: INR in Lakhs) 192 69
Weighted average number of equity shares in
calculating EPS (number)

Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) 2.30

83,54,833 83,54,833
0.82

Note 31: Contigent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March | As at March
31, 2021 31, 2020
(a) Contingent liabilities ;
Claims against the Company not acknowled ged as
debts (including Direct and Indirect taxes) - -
(b) Commitments :
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for (net
of advances) 7 9
Note 32: Payment to auditors
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March | As at March
31, 2021 31, 2020
a) Auditor 4 3
b) for other services. = -
¢) for reimbursement of expenses* 0 I
Total 4 4

* Amount Less than ¥ 0.50 Lakhs




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 33 : Financial Instruments

(i) Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing
capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to
maximize shareholder value.

As at 31st March, 2021, the Company has only one class of equity shares and has no debt. Consequent to such
capital structure, there are no externally imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal
capital structure, the Company allocates its capital for re-investment into business based on its long term financial

plans.

(ii) Categorics of financial instruments (Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020

Financial assets
Mensured at FVTOCI

Non-Current Investments - Equity 15 8
Measured at FVTPL

Non-Current Investments - Mutual Funds 12 8
Current Investments - Mutual Funds 756 316

Measured at amortised cost

Trade Receivables 172 41
Cash and cash equivalents 76 103
Other financial assets (Current and Non Current) 55 63
Intercorporate Deposits 350 400

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 102 79
Other financial liabilities 4 7

(iii) Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely Market risks (interest risks,
commodity price risk, currency risk), Credit risk and Liquidity risk. The Company’s Senior Management has the
overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s
risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the entity
through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of the risk.

(iii)(a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
— will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable
to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency reccivables and payables and long term
debt. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

The Company is currently not exposed to market risk in the reporting period.

(iii)(b) Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fajls to

and advances.
The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 33 : Financial Instruments (Contd.)

The Company deals only with its holding company.Holding Company's outstanding receivables are reviewed on a
quarterly basis and where necessary, the credit allowed to particular customers for subsequent sales is adjusted in
line with their past payment performance. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and
approved by the management on a quarterly basis. Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current
economic environment, Management believes there is no credit risk provision required. Also Company does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk.

The Comparty monitors each loans and advances given and makes any specific provision wherever required.

The ageing of the debtors is as follows:

Age of receivables

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Exceeding six months * ®
Others 172 41
Total 172 41

Currently there is no movement in Provision for Doubtful Debts.

(iii)(¢) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the management, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows.

Liquidity risk tables

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on tho oarlicat date on which the Compauy vau bu iuquinad tw pay.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 31, 2021

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Due in Due in 5+ years Carrying
1st vear amount
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 102 - 102
Other financial liabilities 4 - 4
Total 106 - 106

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 31, 2020

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Due in Due in 5+ years Carrying
1st year amount
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 79 - 79
Other financial liabilities 7 - 7
Total 86 - 86
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PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 34 : Fair Value Measurement

1. Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
This note provides information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

34.1 Fair value of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)

and inputs used).

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

March 31, March 31, Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
Financial assets/ (Financial liabilities) 2021 2020 hierarchy

Non Current

Investments

1) Investments in equity instruments at 15 8 | Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market

FVTOCI (quoted)

2) Investments in Mutual funds at FVTPL 12 8 | Level 2 Fair value of investments in Mutual Funds is
based on Net asset value (NAV) declared by
mutual fund houses at the reporting date.

Current

I) Investments in Mutual funds at FVTPL 756 316 | Level 2 Fair value of investments in Mutual Funds is
based on Net asset value (NAV) declared by
mutual fund houses at the reporting date.

Except as detailed in the followmg table, the Company considers that the carrying amounts of financial instruments recognised in the financial

statements approximate their fair values,

(Amount: INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financial assets held at amortised cost:
Cash and cash equivalent 76 76 103 103
Trade receivables 172 172 41 41
Other financial assets 55 55 63 63
Intercorporate Deposits 350 350 400 400
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
Trade Payables 102 102 79 79
Other financial liabilities

4 4 7 7

2. Measurements of Fair Values

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.




PIL CHEMICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financials statements for the Year ended March 31,2021

Note 35 : Related party transactions

A .Details of related parties

Name of related parties Description of relationship
NOCIL Limited Holding Company
(Amount: INR in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
S. No. Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Nature of Transactions/ Names of Related Parties
A Holding
1 Income fivm Provessing Charges 1,518 1,343
2 Dividend Paid (Excluding Dividend Distribution Tax) - 100
S. No. Particulars As at March 31,( As at March 31,
2021 2020
Balance outstandin
A Holding Company
1 Trade Receivable 172 41

Note 36: Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

(i) Details of Investments made by the company are given in Note 5 and Note 9, in the financial statement.

(ii) There are no securities and guarantees provided and no guarantees given during the year.

Note 37: Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the financial statements

The company's operations at its Vapi plant (Gujarat) and corporate office in Mumbai (Maharashtra) were temporary closed
following the country wide lockdown due to the COVID-19 pandemic till last week of April 2020. The plant operations
commenced from the 1st week of May 2020 after obtaining the requisite permissions from the from Govt. of Gujarat and District
collector. Under the current circumstances, the Management has evaluated the impact on its financial results and in assessing the
recoverability of its assets including receivables and inventories. Considering the information available upto the date of approval
of the financial statements and based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company is reasonabily confident
to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The Company will closely monitor all events which may or may not impact the
financial statements.

Note 38: The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture of rubber chemicals which in the context of Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on Operating Segments constitutes a single reportable segment. The relevant information
regarding secondary segment reporting (by geographical segment) is presented in the consolidated financial statements as required
as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments".

Note 39: Non Current Tax Assets includes X. 96.36 Lakhs (previous year . 154.73 Lakhs) representing MAT Credit entitlement
which is avaiable for utilisation over the period of 6-13 years (previous year 7-14 years).

Note 40: Subsequent Events: There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the
financial statement between the Balance Sheet date and the date of signing of accounts.

Note 41: Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary, to conform to -thi_‘;‘fc-:ur?éh_ff Ly._égir's classification,
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